CITY OF BRIDGEPORT
ORDINANCE COMMITTEE
REGULAL MEETING
MARCH 25, 2025

ATTENDANCE:  Aikeem Boyd, Co-chair; Eneida Martinez, Co-chair; Jeanette Herron,
Ernest Newton, Rolanda Smith, Maria Valle, Michelle Lyons (6:03 p.m.)

OTHERS: Council Member(s): Council President A. Nieves, J. Cruz, J. Melendez, &
A. Vizzo-Paniccia; M. Jankovsky, Associate City Attorney; Aaron Curry,
Public Facilities Deputy Director; Anthony Paoletto, CAO Office; Dr.
Elizabeth Rivera-Rodriguez, Director, Health Department; M. Anastasi,
Esquire

CALL TO ORDER

Co-chair Boyd called the Public Hearing to order at 6:00 p.m. A quorum was present.

APPROVAL OF COMMITTEE MINUTES:

* February 25, 2025 (Regular Meeting)

** COUNCIL MEMBER NEWTON MOVED THE MINUTES OF THE FEBRUARY 25,
2025 MEETING.

** COUNCIL MEMBER SMITH SECONDED.

** THE MOTION TO APPROVE THE MINUTES OF THE FEBRUARY 25, 2025
MEETING AS SUBMITTED PASSED UNANIMOUSLY.

» March 3, 2025 (Special Meeting)

** COUNCIL MEMBER NEWTON MOVED THE MINUTES OF THE MARCH 3, 2025
SPECIAL MEETING.

** COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ SECONDED.

** THE MOTION TO APPROVE THE MINUTES OF THE MARCH 3, 2025 SPECIAL
MEETING AS SUBMITTED PASSED UNANIMOUSLY.

21-24 Proposed Amendment to the Municipal Code of Ordinances, Title 12 — Streets,
Sidewalks and Public Places, amend to add NEW Chapter 12.18 — Walk of Honor.

Council Member Valle said that the last time they had discussed this issue, there were Council
Members who had questions. Council Member Valle said that they had asked those with
questions to send them to either her or Council Member Vizzo-Paniccia, but they did not. Both
she and Council Member Vizzo-Paniccia met with the City Hall Committee on the 24th and they
approved the project pending certain information that she would be gathering for them. She
distributed copies of a document and then read it aloud.

Council Member Lyons joined the meeting at 6:03 p.m.

City of Bridgeport

Ordinance Committee

Regular Meeting

March 25, 2025 Page 1



She then explained that there were a number of street signs where there were numerous names on
a street sign. There was a question about what the cost would be. She described the information
in the hand out including the cost of the bricks, the layout, and the location of the bricks in
relationship to the existing sidewalk and the QR codes on the brick for additional information on
the memorial.

Council Member Vizzo-Paniccia explained that the bricks would be flush with the sidewalk so
there would be no liability issues.

Mr. Curry greeted the Council Members and said his department was trying to get the best price
for the bricks and are waiting on the price quotes. He said that currently there have been a
number of requests for benches through Parks, but they cost $1,800, which could potential pay
for a pallet of memorial bricks. There have also been requests for more memorial street signs.
The bricks will be much easier to install and remove if necessary. Public Facilities will take part
of the cost and will have a dedicated account so when the individual pays for the brick, it will
reimburse the City and be allocated to this fund.

Council Member Vizzo-Paniccia said that Mr. Flatto, the Finance Director, is aware of this and
will be sure that the funds go into the correct account.

Council Member Newton asked who would be responsible for tracking the paperwork. Mr. Curry
said that once they have the text, the Public Facilities staff will follow through. Discussion
followed about the potential removal of the street signs and the need for uniformity in the
signage.

Council Member Herron asked who would be on the Committee that would review the
applications and noted that there would be six members. She also had questions about the street
signs and who would absorb the cost of changing the street signs to be more uniform.

Council Member Vizzo-Paniccia said that the City would probably absorb the cost of the signs
because they had to redo them anyway. There is a list of individuals who have been selected to
potentially be on the Committee from the general public and some from the Council. It would be
then referred to Miscellaneous Matters and presented to the full Council after that. Discussion
followed about the details.

Council Member Martinez had a number of questions about the removal of the memorial street
signs, which Council Member Valle answered.

Council Member Martinez said that in her District, there were a number of individuals such as a
firefighter, a U.S. Service man and the young victim of a fire who had honorary street signs. She
wished to know how they would select the six individuals for inclusion in this walk. Council
Member Valle said that the information was in the packet.

Council Member Martinez said that Ordinance was not included in the earlier discussions and
should have been. Since they were voting on this, she wanted her questions answered before
voting on this. She wished to know how they would be breaking up the list and if it was going to
be done by the year.

City of Bridgeport

Ordinance Committee

Regular Meeting

March 25, 2025 Page 2



Council Member Vizzo-Paniccia said that they were just trying to launch the program and then
they would go back to incorporate the individuals who are currently on street signs. Discussion
followed about the history of bringing this request to the Ordinance Commission and also
providing more information on the honored individuals on the City website.

Council Member Newton said that someone should not have to die to have their name included
in the walk. Council Member Valle said that someone could still be living when the memorial is
created. She added that Atty. Jankovsky was present to speak on this and also took a moment to
thank Ms. Ashley Aguilera for her hard work on this project.

Atty. Jankovsky said that he was not familiar with what the qualifications were for a memorial
street sign. He then reviewed the details of the proposal. Discussion followed about the process
of selecting the individuals and the cost of the bricks versus street signs.

** COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ MOVED AGENDA ITEM 21-24 PROPOSED
AMENDMENT TO THE MUNICIPAL CODE OF ORDINANCES, TITLE 12 —
STREETS, SIDEWALKS AND PUBLIC PLACES, AMEND TO ADD NEW CHAPTER
12.18 - WALK OF HONOR.

** COUNCIL MEMBER NEWTON SECONDED.

** THE MOTION PASSED WITH THREE (3) IN FAVOR (LYONS, MARTINEZ, AND
VALLE) AND ONE (1) OPPOSED (HERRON).

Council Member Martinez noted that they could not hold a Public Hearing on this issue at the
next Council meeting because that slot has already been assigned. The next open slot will be at
the following Council meeting on April 21, 2025.

** COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ MOVED TO SCHEDULE A PUBLIC HEARING
FOR AGENDA ITEM 21-24 PROPOSED AMENDMENT TO THE MUNICIPAL
CODE OF ORDINANCES, TITLE 12 - STREETS, SIDEWALKS AND PUBLIC
PLACES, AMEND TO ADD NEW CHAPTER 12.18 - WALK OF HONOR ON APRIL
21, 2025 AT 6:00 P.M.

** COUNCIL MEMBER NEWTON SECONDED.

** THE MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY.

** COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ WITHDREW HER MOTION TO APPROVE
AGENDA ITEM 21-24 PROPOSED AMENDMENT TO THE MUNICIPAL CODE OF
ORDINANCES, TITLE 12 — STREETS, SIDEWALKS AND PUBLIC PLACES, AMEND
TO ADD NEW CHAPTER 12.18 — WALK OF HONOR FOR THE PURPOSE OF
ADDING EXHIBITS TO THE ITEM.

** COUNCIL MEMBER NEWTON WITHDREW HIS SECOND.

** COUNCIL MEMBER HERRON MOVED TO ENTER THE FOLLOWING
DOCUMENTS INTO THE RECORD AS EXHIBITS:

e THE DOCUMENT TITLED “WALK OF HONOR BUDGET PROJECTIONS”
AS EXHIBIT 03-03-2025-A.

City of Bridgeport

Ordinance Committee

Regular Meeting

March 25, 2025 Page 3



THE DOCUMENT DATED APRIL 12 BOARD OF COMMISSIONS AS
EXHIBIT 03-03-2025-B.

THE DOCUMENT DATED JUNE 14 PARKS BOARDS REGULAR
MEETING AS EXHIBIT 03-03-2025-C.

THE APPROVAL LETTER DATED 03-24-25 FROM THE CITY CLERK AS
EXHIBIT 03-03-2025-D.

THE DOCUMENTS TITLED “WALK OF HONOR, WHEELER PARK,
AK.A.CITY HALL PARK” AS EXHIBIT 03-03-2025-E.

** COUNCIL MEMBER NEWTON SECONDED.
**THE MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY.

** COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ MOVED AGENDA ITEM 21-24 PROPOSED
AMENDMENT TO THE MUNICIPAL CODE OF ORDINANCES, TITLE 12 -
STREETS, SIDEWALKS AND PUBLIC PLACES, AMEND TO ADD NEW CHAPTER
12.18 — WALK OF HONOR WITH THE EXHIBITS AS ENTERED INTO THE
RECORD.

** COUNCIL MEMBER NEWTON SECONDED.

** THE MOTION PASSED WITH THREE (3) IN FAVOR (LYONS, MARTINEZ, AND
VALLE) AND ONE (1) OPPOSED (HERRON).

46-24 Proposed Amendment to the Municipal Code of Ordinances, amend Chapter 2.02
— Administrative Regulations Generally, to add NEW Section 2.02.035 — Language Access
Requirements.

Council Member Cruz came forward and said that he had discussed this with Council Member
Melendez and they were requesting that this item be tabled. He distributed a packet of
information to the Committee members.

** COUNCIL MEMBER HERRON MOVED TO ENTER THE INFORMATION
PACKET AS EXHIBIT 03-03-2025-A.

** COUNCIL MEMBER NEWTON SECONDED.

**THE MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY.

Council Member Melendez said that this item would require translation and interpretation
services for City Council meetings with the six most common non-English languages spoken
along with Spanish specifically for Council meetings. This will also create a language access
plan to insure that the City will be in compliance within 90 days for the Council meetings and
City services.

Council Member Lyons requested they include sign language.

Council Member Newton asked if this was focused on City Council meetings. Council Member
Melendez said that it would also include City services and documentation in other languages as
well. Council Member Newton said that he believed that the City already had these services in
place. Council Member Melendez explained that there have been issues regarding
documentation.

City of Bridgeport

Ordinance Committee

Regular Meeting

March 25, 2025 Page 4



Council President Nieves said that once the upgrades to the Chambers have been completed, the
next step will be for bi-lingual access. Mr. Denton will be ordering the translation headsets.
Regarding the other departments, Council President Nieves said that they should have invited
Mr. Denton to attend. Mr. Paoletto said that some departments already have translation services
like the Health Department hotline. The former Communications Director was working on
getting the forms translated.

Council President Nieves noted that when the TV screens are installed in the Council Chambers,
there will be captioning. They will also have to speak to the CAO’s office.

Dr. Rivera-Rodriguez, the Health Department Director, greeted the Committee and said that she
has a translation service that she uses for the Housing inspectors, environmental violation codes
along with translating documents, which is done for a fee. The services is done on a mobile app
with the top three languages: Spanish, Portuguese and Haitian Creole. The link connects with a
live interpreter in real time and the staff loves it. She receives a monthly bill for this service and
it has been used successfully. Council Member Herron suggested the 365 program which has an
option for document translation.

Council Member Vizzo-Paniccia said that she agreed with Council Member Lyons and added
that they should also include Braille in the building signage.

Council Member Melendez said that the plan includes details, so it can function as a Public
Information service so the public knows what services are available.

Council Member Martinez asked if the attorneys had reviewed this. Atty. Anastasi said the items
were filed on the 17th and arrived in City Attorney’s Office a few days later, so there was no
legal opinion available. However, he said he did have some suggestions.

Atty. Anastasi said that City Attorney Toms has been in contact with a consulting company in
Boston to provide the City with a Title VI plan and a Title VI coordinator for a Language
proficiency plan. Preliminary drafts are available and suggested respectfully that the Committee
consider tabling this matter until the City Attorney’s Office can provide the Council with the
reports, which are expected to be submitted in final form shortly. This is obviously a matter that
the City wants to be up to date on Title VI and VII with internal compliance plans.

Atty. Anastasi explained that the State and Federal governments require plans, but do not dictate
the elements of those plans. There will be budget impacts. He said that the Committee will want
to hear what the consultants have to say. This consulting group also works with the GBT and
provide excellent translation services.

Council Member Lyons asked when the City started working on this project. Atty. Anastasi said
that he believed that it was sometime last fall and that he checked with the attorney who is in
charge of this issue and they believe they are close to finalizing the work. The Council will have
the chance to give their feedback. The needs are changing. He noted that there are over 100
languages spoken in the school system. He felt it might be premature to move forward on this
item until the report is available.

City of Bridgeport

Ordinance Committee

Regular Meeting

March 25, 2025 Page 5



Council Member Cruz said that when he was in Washington, he attended a seminar about a
variety of issues. Later he spoke with Council Member Melendez and this was initiated by the
Make the Road Connecticut organization, who were present at the meeting. There are changes
that could be made and the changes should be considered. Council Member Cruz said that he had
worked on this with Council Member Melendez and Ms. Aguilera.

Council Member Herron noted that on page 3 of 3 the first two items deal with regulatory things
and has nothing to do with language. Atty. Anastasi explained that when the document was
printed out, they printed the entire chapter so that the Committee would know where they would
fit it into the chapter.

** COUNCIL MEMBER HERRON MOVED TO TABLE AGENDA ITEM 46-
24 PROPOSED AMENDMENT TO THE MUNICIPAL CODE OF ORDINANCES,
AMEND CHAPTER 2.02 — ADMINISTRATIVE REGULATIONS GENERALLY, TO
ADD NEW SECTION 2.02.035 - LANGUAGE ACCESS REQUIREMENTS UNTIL ALL
THE DOCUMENTS ARE RECEIVED FROM THE CITY ATTORNEY’S OFFICE.

** COUNCIL MEMBER LYONS SECONDED.

**THE MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY.

47-24 Proposed Amendment to the Municipal Code of Ordinances, amend Title 9 —
Public Peace and Welfare, to add NEW Chapter 9.22 — Immigrant Tenant Protections.

Council Member Cruz came forward and distributed a document packet to be included in the
record as an exhibit.

Council Member Melendez said that the ordinance was designed to protect immigrant tenants
from harassment and intimidation about their citizenship. The Police Department may not
working hand in hand with ICE but they are upholding legal matters. There are requirements for
landlords to follow State and Federal laws and legal requirement for tenants for housing
programs. This will put in some protections for tenants to say that because of someone’s
immigration status they should not be intimidated, retaliated again and there should be a level of
respect given to individuals regardless of their status.

Council Member Lyons asked if Council Members Cruz and Melendez created this with the help
of Make A Road Connecticut. Council Member Melendez said this was so.

Council Member Lyons asked if this item had been reviewed by the City Attorney’s Office. Atty.
Anastasi said that it had not been reviewed yet. He said that the City Attorneys need to determine
if the Council can legislate on the local level and whether there are State and Federal laws on this
already exist. He mentioned CHRO laws that are cited. This is about immigration status and
there are different rules that apply based on immigration status. The Council cannot create
immigration laws for the private sector. These are laudable goals, but the City must make sure
that they are in their lane regarding this item.

Council Member Herron asked if anyone had pulled the State statutes on this. She added that she
was not sure if there was any laws regarding immigration status for housing. It is important to

City of Bridgeport

Ordinance Committee

Regular Meeting

March 25, 2025 Page 6



protect the community but this needs to be done correctly. Atty. Anastasi said that a State statute
is cited on page 6.

** COUNCIL MEMBER HERRON MOVED TO ENTER THE INFORMATION
PACKET TITLED “ORDINANCE SUMMARY FOR PROPOSED AMENDMENTS FOR
THE MUNICIPAL CODE TITLE IX FOR PUBLIC PEACE AND WELFARE AS
EXHIBIT 03-03-2025-1.

** COUNCIL MEMBER NEWTON SECONDED.

**THE MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY.

Council Member Cruz thanked the Committee for entertaining the request. He will work with
Atty. Anastasi on this. He went on to say that these were dire times and that the most vulnerable
population was being harassed, intimidated, abused and taken advantage of were the
undocumented. It is the Council’s obligation to protect those in the City. The landlords in
Bridgeport tend to abuse these people and this is why this is necessary. Thank God for Make the
Road Connecticut for working on these items.

Council Member Newton said that this was one of the reasons that the Fair Rent Commission
was re-established. It is important to make sure they are in line with the State and Federal
governments because they both supersede the municipal ordinances.

Council Member Melendez said that there was a lot of personal testimony that both she and
Council Member Cruz could bring forward. She said that the Fair Rent Commission could also
bring forward some of their testimonies. There are many tenants in Bridgeport that are not being
represented properly. Dr. Rivera-Rodriguez said that the Health Department had not seen any
heavy traffic coming in for Fair Rent.

Council Member Herron said that this was happening in all of the Districts and involves all
ethnicities. She said she had gone in to apartments in her District that had 10 or 15 people living
there. The Council is doing their due diligence for these individuals who have a right to live well
and with dignity.

** COUNCIL MEMBER HERRON MOVED TO TABLE AGENDA ITEM 47-
24 PROPOSED AMENDMENT TO THE MUNICIPAL CODE OF ORDINANCES,
AMEND TITLE 9 - PUBLIC PEACE AND WELFARE, TO ADD NEW CHAPTER 9.22 —
IMMIGRANT TENANT PROTECTIONS UNTIL MORE INFORMATION IS
AVAILABLE.

** COUNCIL MEMBER LYONS SECONDED.

**THE MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY.

48-24 Proposed Amendment to the Municipal Code of Ordinances, amend Title 10 —
Vehicles and Traffic, to add NEW Chapter 10.18 — Recreational VVehicles.

51-24 Proposed Amendment to the Municipal Code of Ordinances, amend Chapter
15.12 — Housing Code and repeal Section 15.12.160(F).

Council Member Cruz requested the Committee table Agenda Items 48-24 and 51-24 at this
time.

City of Bridgeport

Ordinance Committee

Regular Meeting

March 25, 2025 Page 7



** COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ MOVED TO TABLE THE FOLLOWING
AGENDA ITEMS:

48-24 PROPOSED AMENDMENT TO THE MUNICIPAL CODE OF
ORDINANCES, AMEND TITLE 10 - VEHICLES AND TRAFFIC, TO ADD NEW
CHAPTER 10.18 - RECREATIONAL VEHICLES.

51-24 PROPOSED AMENDMENT TO THE MUNICIPAL CODE OF
ORDINANCES, AMEND CHAPTER 15.12 — HOUSING CODE AND REPEAL
SECTION 15.12.160(F).

** COUNCIL MEMBER HERRON SECONDED.
** THE MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY.

ADJOURNMENT

** COUNCIL MEMBER HERRON MOVED TO ADJOURN.
** COUNCIL MEMBER NEWTON SECONDED.
**THE MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY.

The meeting adjourned at 7:24 p.m.
Respectfully submitted,

S. L. Soltes
Telesco Secretarial Services

City of Bridgeport

Ordinance Committee

Regular Meeting

March 25, 2025 Page 8



